CONSENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

Alg - 81988

DONALD R. WAREHIME, D.O.
AND

THE STATE MEDICAL BOARD OF OHIO

This Consent Agreement (hereinafter "AGREEMENT") is entered into
by and between Donald R. Warehime, D.O., and The State Medical
Board of Ohio, a state agency charged with enforcing Chapter 4731,
Ohio Revised Code.

Donald R. Warehime, D.O., enters into this AGREEMENT being fully
informed of his rights under Chapter 119, Ohio Revised Code,
including the right to representation by counsel and the right to
a formal adjudication hearing on the issues considered herein.

This AGREEMENT is entered into on the basis of the following
admissions and understandings:

1. Donald R. wWarehime, D.O. (hereinafter "DR.
WAREHIME"), admits that he received a notice of
opportunity for hearing (hereinafter "citation
letter"), which was dated November 11, 1987,

2. DR. WAREHIME states the following:

a. On or about April 9, 1987, agents of the State
Pharmacy Board of Ohio were voluntarily given
by DR. WAREHIME and his staff from DR.
WAREHIME's office the drugs which are listed on
"Table A" which was attached to the citation

letter. Certain of said drugs were 1n bottles
that were beyond the expiration date of said
drugs. Certain of said drugs were placed in

bottles that did not contain the labeling
information set forth in §3715.64, Ohio Revised
Code.

b. On or about March 26, 1987, DR. WAREHIME
admitted to Wwilliam L. Padgett, Enforcement
Agent, the State Pharmacy Board of Ohio, that
he administers and dispenses the Thormones,
testosterone and estrogen, to his patients for
purposes of weight loss. Patients are injected



with 1/2 cc of estrogen or testosterone during
their office visits, and are dispensed 1-1/2 cc
of additional testosterone or estrogen in vials
that are labeled before the patient leaves the
office, placed in a styrofoam cup with ice with
certain labeling instructions, the date and
name of the drug, and specific instructions as
to application, with instructions to inject
themselves with 1/2 cc per week for three weeks.

c. On or about March 26, 1987, in the course of an
inspection of DR. WAREHIME's office by
wWilliam L. Padgett, Enforcement Agent, the
State Pharmacy Board of Ohio, it was noted that
DR. WAREHIME had in stock guantities of
Phentermine HCL, a schedule IV controlled
substance stimulant, which he had caused to be
placed in vials for dispensing to his
patients. Said stocks included thirty-six (36)
vials of Phentermine HCL 37.5 mg. in amounts of
twenty-eight (28), and twenty-nine (29) vials
of Phentermine HCL 30 mg. in amounts of thirty
(30). Phentermine HCL in such strengths 1is
indicated for weight loss on a one-a-day basis
only. DR. WAREHIME sends with each patient
instructions and certain labeling that one pill
per day 1is to be taken for twenty-eight (28)
days.

3. DR. WAREHIME does not concede that the allegations
contained in paragraph two (2), above, constitute
violations of the provisions as alleged by the State
Medical Board of Ohio in the citation letter.

4, DR. WAREHIME 1is fully ©prepared to contest the
allegations contained in the citation letter and
offer evidence to justify, explain, and support his
conduct. However, because of his age and health,
DR. WAREHIME is already 1in the process of winding
down his practice of medicine and will retire on or
before December 31, 1988. For this reason, and also
to avoid the expense and uncertainty of a hearing
before The State Medical Board, a possible appeal,
and further litigation, DR. WAREHIME elects to enter
into this AGREEMENT for the reasons herein expressed.

WHEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and mutual promises
hereinafter set forth, and in lieu of any formal proceedings at
this time, DR. WAREHIME, knowingly and voluntarily, and The State
Medical Board of Ohio (hereinafter "BOARD") agree to the following
conditions and limitations:



A. DR. WAREHIME agrees that upon the effective date of
this AGREEMENT, he shall immediately surrender,
shall be ineligible to hold, and shall not ever
apply for, registration with the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration to prescribe, dispense or
administer controlled substances.

B. DR. WAREHIME agrees that, sixty (60) days after the
effective date of this AGREEMENT, he shall
permanently refrain from the practice of medicine or
surgery.

cC. DR. WAREHIME agrees that during the sixty (60) day
period between the effective date of the AGREEMENT
and his permanent cessation of the practice of
medicine, he shall not see any new patients, except
that DR. WAREHIME may see new patient(s) during this
time period if an emergency is present and immediate
care by DR. WAREHIME is necessary to treat the new
patient(s).

D. DR. WAREHIME agrees that during the sixty (60) day
time period between the effective date of this
AGREEMENT and his permanent cessation of the
practice of medicine, he will obey all federal,
state and 1local laws, and all rules governing the
practice of medicine in Ohio.

E. DR. WAREHIME agrees‘that he will permanently retire
from the practice of medicine on December 31, 1988.

F. DR. WAREHIME and the BOARD agree not to .request
modification of this AGREEMENT so long as all
parties continue to abide by this AGREEMENT.

G. The BOARD agrees to not proceed with any further
proceedings or determinations of the matters set
forth or alleged in the citation letter so long as
DR. WAREHIME is in compliance with this AGREEMENT.

If in the discretion of the Secretary of BOARD, DR. WAREHIME
appears to have violated or breached any terms or conditions of
this AGREEMENT, the BOARD reserves the right to institute formal
disciplinary proceedings for any and all possible violations or
breaches, including but not limited to, alleged violations of the
laws of Ohio occurring before the effective date of this AGREEMENT.

Any action initiated by the BOARD based on alleged violations of
this AGREEMENT shall comply with the Administrative Procedure Act,
Chapter 119, Ohio Revised Code.




DR. WAREHIME hereby releases the BOARD, its members, employees,
agents, officers, and representatives, individually and
collectively, Jjointly and severally, from any and all liability
arising from the within matter.

It is AGREED and UNDERSTOOD by and between both parties that this
CONSENT AGREEMENT shall be considered a public record as that term
is used in Section 149 .43, Ohio Revised Code.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereto set our hands on the respective
dates set forth below each signature:

FOR LICENSEE: FOR THE STATE MEDICAL BOARD:
HENRY CRAMBLETT,
LICENSEE SECRE Y

Fa-ss -5 77

DATE DATE

Lk 0w 4‘ Z
) Hd - u “. u . N ' ?

KENNETH S. BLUMENTHAL, ESQ. JOBNM _E. RAUCH,/ .

ATTORNEY FOR DONALD R. . SUPERVISING MEMBER

WAREHIME, D.O.

<lql<g A {1

DATE\ | DATE

.

CHRISTOPHYR J. COSTANTINI
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

QlsIe®

DATE

39628



STATE OF OHIO
THE STATE MEDICAL BOARD
65 South Front Street
B Suite 510
T Columbus, Ohio 43266-0315

November 11, 1987

Donald R. Warehime, D.O.
530 Second Avenue
Gallipolis, Ohio 45631

Dear Doctor Warehime:

In accordance with Chapter 119., Ohio Revised Code, you are hereby
notified that the State Medical Board of Ohio intends to determine
whether or not to limit, revoke, suspend, refuse to register or
reinstate your certificate to practice osteopathic medicine and
surgery or to reprimand or place you on probation for one or more of
the following reasons: ) \

(1) On or about April 9, 1987, agents of the State Pharmacy
Board of Ohio seized from your office the drugs which
are listed on the attached Table A. All said drugs were
adulterated, as that term is defined in Section 3715.63,
Ohio Revised Code, and/or misbranded, as that term is
defined in Section 3715.64, Ohio Revised Code. You had
admitted to an agent of the State Pharmacy Board during
a previous conversation that you have never thrown any-
thing away in more than forty (40) years of practice,
and that you would often empty new bottles of stock into
old bottles that were on the shelves. :

Such acts in the above paragraph (1), individually and/or collectively,
constitute "failure to use reasonable care discrimination in the ,
administration of drugs," as that clause is used in Section 4731.22

(B)(2), Ohio Revised Code.

Further, such acts in the above paragraph (1), individually and/or
collectively, constitute "a departure from, or the failure to conform
to, minimal standards of care of similar practitioners under the same
or similar circumstances, whether or not actual injury to a patient is
established," as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(6), Ohio
Revised Code. .

Further, such acts in the above paragraph (1), individually and/or
collectively, constitute "commission of an act that constitutes a
misdemeanor in this state regardless of the jurisdiction in which the
act was committed, if the act was committed in the course of practice",
as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(12), Ohio Revised Code, to

wit: Sections 3715.52 and 3715.99, Ohio Revised Code, Prohibitions.
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STATE OF OHIO
THE STATE MEDICAL BOARD
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Donald R. Warehime, D.O. : November 11, 1987

Further, as concerns the 7-3/4 tablets of Quaalude 300 mg. and 238

tablets of Quaalude 150 mg., a Schedule I controlled substance, as

listed in Table A, such acts in the above paragraph (1), individually
and/or collectively, constitute "commission of an act that constitutes
a felony in this state regardless of the jurisdiction in which the act
was committed”, as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(10), Ohio
Revised Code,to wit: Section 2925.03, Ohio Revised Code, Trafficking

in Drugs.

(2) On or about March 26, 1987, you admitted to William L.
Padgett, Enforcement Agent, the State Pharmacy Board
of Ohio, that you administer and dispense the hormones,
testosterone and estrogen, to your patients for purposes
of weight loss. Patients are injected with 1/2 cc of
estrogen or testosterone during their office visits,
and are dispensed 1-1/2 cc of additional testosterone
or estrogen in unlabeled vials, with instructions to
inject themselves with 1/2 cc per week for three weeks.

Such acts in the above paragraph (2), individually and/or collectively,
constitute “"failure to use reasonable care discrimination in the '
administration of drugs," and "failure to employ acceptable scientific
methods in the selection of drugs or other modalities for treatment of
disease," as those clauses are used in Section 4731.22(B)(2), Ohio

Revised Code.

Further, such acts in the above paragraph (2), individually and/or
collectively, constitute “selling, prescribing, giving away, or
administering drugs for other than legal and legitimate therapeutic
purposes,” as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(3), Ohio
Revised Code.

Further, such acts in the above paragraph (2), individually and/or
collectively, constitute "a departure from, or the failure to conform
to, minimal standards of care of similar Practitioners under the same
or similar circumstances, whether or not actual injury to a patient is
established," as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(6), Ohio
Revised Code.

(3) On or about March 26, 1987, in the course of an
inspection of your office by William L. Padgett,
Enforcement Agent, the State Pharmacy Board of Ohio,
it was noted that you had in stock quantities of
Phentermine HCL, a schedule IV controlled substance
stimulant, which you had caused to be placed in wvials
for dispensing to your patients. Said stocks included
thirty-six (36) vials of Phentermine HCL 37.5 mg. in
amounts of twenty-eight (28), and twenty-nine (29)
vials of Phentermine HCL 30 mg. in amounts of thirty
(30). Phentermine HCL in such strengths is indicated
for weight loss on a one-a-day basis only.
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Donald R. Warehime, D.O.

Such acts in the above paragraph (3), individually and/or collectively,
constitute "violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly,
or assisting in or abetting the violation of, or conspiring to violate,
any provisions of this chapter or any rule promulgated by the Board",
as that clause is used in Section 4731.22(B)(20), Ohio Revised Code, to
wit: Rule 4731-11-04(B) and/or 4731-11-04(B)(5)(a), Ohio Administra-
tive Code. Pursuant to Rule 4731-11-04(C), Ohio Administrative Code,
such violations also violate Sections 4731.22(B)(2), 4731.22(B)(3), and
4731.22(B)(6), Ohio Revised Code.

Pursuant to Chapter 119., Ohio Revised Code, you are hereby advised
that you are entitled to a hearing in this matter. If you wish to
request such hearing, that request must be made within thirty (30) days
of the time of mailing of this notice.

You are further advised that you are entitled to appear at such hearing
in person, or by your attorney, or you may present your position,
arguments, or contentions in writing, and that at the hearing you may
present evidence and examine witnesses appearing for or against you.

In the event that there is no request for such hearing made within
thirty (30) days of the time of mailing of this notice, the State
Medical Board may, in your absence and upon consideration of this
matter, determine whether or not to limit, revoke, suspend, refuse to
register or reinstate your certificate to practice osteopathic medicine
and surgery or to reprimand or place you on probation.

Coples of the applicable sections are enclosed for your information.

Very gruly yours,

Henry G. amblett, M.D.
Secretary

HGC:caa
Enclosures

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NO. P 026 073 381
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED .
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DRUG
ARUACCAINE 100CC
ASMINYL
B-COMPLEX C INJ
Bl/B&/B1I2
BACTERIOSTATE WATER
BENTYL INJ
CALPHOSAN
CALFHOSAN-1312
CALUATE

CETANE SooCe
CHORIONIC GOMADOTROPIN
CINCOSAL 20 cC

CLACIUM GLUCONATE 10 ML
CYANOCABALAMIN
CYANOCOBALAMIN

CYNACYL

DECARDON LA SML

DENEEE 10CC

DEXTRO AMFHETAMINE SULFATE
ESTRONE INJ

FERRO-ARSEN 1oCC \
FOLEXITE

BLUIO-STAM-OTIL.UENT

GOMEMOL COMFOUND IN OIL TomL
GYNERGEN

GYNOGEN R.F.

HYDROCHLGRIC ACID ,
AYDROCORTISOME ACETA 2 1000
HYDROYOMIN

IS3TOMNIC FROCA [NE Hy, SCC
iy DEZONE

LUFYLLIN
MAGMESTiJM SULFATE
NATURAL ESTROSESTC 2 MG/ML
NEDQ-TOFPAX

MOFFLEYX

FHYATROMINE

.ASMO OR NETET 0 1y

FYRIDOXINE i

FRHUS TOX AMTIGEM

ROBAX M Looe

SCCTUM CHL.

30TTUM CHLORIDE

STERILE WATER INJ 15CC
TESTTOSTEROME  IM ONLY
THIAMINE HCL IO MU
VISTaMIL HCL

YITAMIN R

VITAMIMN D

XYLOCAINE HCL

TABLE A
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ALKALINE AROMATIC
ALTERWAGEL

AMCX IL

ANALGESIC

ARTHROFAN

ASMINYL LIQ
"BARBIDONNA
EELLADONNA

BENADRYL

BENADYL -ELIXER

BI-K -

CASCARA AROMATIC
CEPASTAT

CETANE S0
CHLORASEPTIC
CHOLEDYL

CHOLEDYL TAES AND ELIXER
CLYCERIN CP
COMF.BENZION TINC
COMTREX

DAYTOL NasaL =rFrav oTL
DERMaL.AC

DILUTED HYDROCHORIC ACID
DIMETAFF

DOMMAGEL  Fi3

ELIXIS SEDAELE COoMP
BANTANOL,

SAVIZCON

GEMTTAN VIOLET
GLYCERIN CF

HAX IBER

HYGBEFHENM

[LOMEL

INGIDES
ISAFHED

KAQGN
KAOFECTATE
KOLYUM

LACTIC ACID
LIC. AMALGESIC EALM
LOMOTTL
LORTHIO
LUFYLLIN
LUFYLL IN-GG
MILANTA 2

MILE OF MAG.
MISC.

MODANE BRULE
N.F. MOUTHWASH
NELDECON
NEORON SUSF.
NEUTHYLL INE

e > e e e e e

2 BOTTLES
1 BOTTLE

1 BOTTLE

1/2 GAL

1 BOTTLE

1/2

1 BOTTLE

1/2

8 BAOTTLES
TOML

3> BOTTLES
1 BOTTLE
1 BOTTLE
1 BOTTLE
172

2 BOTTLES
I BOTTLE
1.3

1 30TTLE
1 \OTTLE
LUATTLE

ST
. BUOTTLES
< BUTTLES
1 BOCTILE
11/ 4
L BOTTiLS

i

LO BGTTLES
1BOTTLE

1 eaTTILLE
ZOML

3 BAOTTLES
? BOTTLES
1/4

4 JARS
/4

10ML

1/2

1 BOTTLE

TABLE A
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NLLVE. .
NOVAHISTINE DH
NGVAHISTINE
_ORGANIDIN

oL
AND S LIQUID
5 INE
PANMYCIN
PANSCUG BODY LOTION
FARADIRNE SULF. SUSP
FHEMERGAN vC
FHEMNERGAN

.FHENERGAN vC
POTTASSIUM CHL
QUIBON

QUIBRON

RONIALCOLE ELIX
ROSE SULLABLE
RYNA-C

SILVER NITRATE
SILVER NITRATE to%
SURGICOTA
SYNOFHYLATE ELIX
SYNFTOM

T-125

TAKA-DTASTASE

THEQ: TN :
TINCHTURE HYOSCYANUS
TINCHURE MOTAFHES
TINCTURE EEMZION CF
TIMCTURE HYOSCYAMIS
TIMCTURE OF EBELLADOMNG
TRIGMINIC

TUSSAR SF

TUSSEN EX

TUSET JRGAMOIN
TYLENOL ELTX

TYINE

T TAMINS

YOSOL

WRIGHTS BLOOD STAIN
XYLENE

XYLOCAINE 2%
ZENTRON

ZYLATE

L R - O s b s e s g Q;

>

BOTTLE
BOTTLE
BOTTLE
BOTTLE
BOTTLE
BOTTLES
EQTTLES
BOTTLES
BOTTLES
BOTTLE
BOTTLE
BEOTTLES

N

BOTTLES
< BOTTLE
1BOTTLE
1 BOTTLE
1/2 GAL
BOTTLES
BOTTLES
EOTTLE
BOTTLES
BEOTTLE
/4
1 BOTTLE
{ BOTTLE
172
I BOTTLES
SO0TTLE
0TTLE
SOTTLE
2ITTE
“0TTLE
2OTTLE
< BOTTLES
EQTTLES
ESTTLES
BIOTTLE
2AQTTILE
BOTTLE
BOTTL.
BOITLE

vt
.

J o

= e O

J“.lJn—-:—'-Ho-‘p-‘b-.-n'_.

i i

T =

BOTTLE

- s 3 4y s pa
m

TABLE A
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A.L. CAROID FOWDER . 12.0
ABC-DIENESTROL 1S
ACHOL
ACHOL-TARS - 1sS.0
ACHROYCIN S,000,0
ACI-GEL CREME ]
ACTIFED
ACUsSOL So0 o0
ACUTUSS 100,60
ACREMNUCLED v 1,000.9
ADVIL S0.0
~FRODEX

100,06
ALBURON S00.0

(%]

100, 0

. ALCHOL TAES 100.0
ALDACTAZIDE
ALDACTONE

100,06
SO0,
40.0

SO0

200.0
10,0

\
&5, 0
L0
CLLBEE W-iD 5.
Al

ALUFENT  IMHALER =

MECD

F, Wt

2Fy SO0, ¢
A DNGD G0 In S TRIS I
AMING G010 Tazs Loy o
SMIMG SO IDT o o Ty

TGRS TN
AT IUM CHLORIDE

HMOK TL T

AMFHEDASE T

AMFICILL &N T

ANALDI ZER T 0
* ANAM T NE o
ANAT I EE e

v, i

VR

o,
BNEEHERN e
AMETUSS e
MRS T Y Qs 0

AMNEXSIA-D RN
H=rHDRON SCG.O
AMHYDROM-k 2700
AMNODYMNOS-DHC S00.0
ANSFQOR 100.0

20,0

ANTI-ACIDTAES 2s.0
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- A TURANE IS.0
AFASAL 00,9
AFC TAES 9,000, 0
AFFEASE 2,060, 0
APRESAZIDE CSo.0

I0.0

ARCHROCIDIN
ARISTOCORT
ARRLIDIN

- SG,0
SCO.D
1,00C. 0
400, 0
10,0

SRTANE
ARTHRIM
ASA HAB 1,000.0
ASCCREIC ACID 800.0

. ASCORBICAF 10.0
ASCRIFTIN asp TH.3
ASCRIFTCN S00.0
ASENDIN '

TOC.D
100,
SG.

S0

OO0
10O, 0

e

o

SBM Iy

\ 1,000, 0

H
b ety

LLEM L0
E 4 20,0
1.0,
R
- .
P
TR
Y e e ..
v G e LI
20 4 RERI
s T HE
-
LR I ey
. )
T [ARLLEE
"
BeNC &5 -t 3
e g .
BREL IO T .
BRR D .. 58
e e
e
et
1

H .y
.......

SUTR S T Ay
S ed)

o T
seMMETT

BZME~I D
EEMNT3ONMNE
SQEROCCN :
BERGCCA FUo_o 0.0
BETAIN-HCL J,000.0
BITRINSIC 0.0
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< ClTRINS 1o g
BLOCADREN

TABLE A

800, 0
1.,000,0
10,0

BREONESIN 12.0
BRETHINE 7= e

L]
- . -

- &L

SREXIN 1200
BRICANYL 120,40
10,0

SIS

To0

ERINCANYL
ERCHOMETER
_BROMCHISQTE

ERCNDECOM

100,60
G0, 0
00,0
130.0

- N
23.0

BROMDILATE

1,200, 0
ERDOMNECDYL 00 0y
100, 0

\ 25.0

.
s lie
: .
i
4
’
. oy . .-
I T I 1 Lt
Leat \
g
g e, e o
wallGolum - [STAHETRT o Py L
Y e i A
- | L ‘- -

CAPRCOL, LT

e
USSR RSN

.-
CAR TG e .
ST S AR
: .
12 -
-
l’.
...-".‘.' ) -
DL
. .
RPN Y -
S,
S0, 0
SETAT 200

SMMEMNE X 10,0
CETANE 10.0
CHEL &RATS 20.0
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TABLE A

- tILDRENS ASFIRIN
CHLOR-TRIMETON
CHLOR-TRIMENTON
CHLORASEPTIC T&6.0
CHLDRHENIRAMINE MALFATE 200.9
CHLORO-SUL YAG SUFF 292.0
CHLORFHENIRAMINE ZyI300.0 0
CHODEDYL 1,800.0
CHOLANE DH

100,19
CHOLEDYL 120, 0

1SG.0

1,900.0
1,000.0
&5G.0

7T.0

SO.0

CHOLEDYL LIQ 1.9
CHOLEDYL saA 100.0
CHOLEDYL-SA 100.0
CHORYSHENIRAMINE 2,000.0
CLEQCEN T 10.0
TLEQCIN-T. 10,0
CLINORIL 1,000.¢

AZIE IR

200,00

LR g

- - -,

TDLO0

CO—=8 0

ZOBIRGN }

-y -
CObe =My I ST L0
[ o Y ~ -
U T TRE 20
™.

DT
B I

[

K}
-

R
1320
200,40
100.0

0.0
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" NCREASE
DARICON

200, 0
190.0
1¢0.0

DARVACET SO.0
DARVON 1 e

FSew P |

~
2T5.0

DECADRON 1.0
DECADRON CREAM 100, 0
DECADROM OINTMENMT 8.0
DELFEN V&G CRESM 70,0
DERMA D CREME 4,0
DESOXYZFHELR INE
DESYFREL

DETAIN HCL
DI-METREX 100.0
DInEATA I0.0
DIALGG T0.0
DIALOSE SO0

100, G

LOO O
S0G.0

5,000_9

DlansedL 100G, 0
DinNARDL 200,06
CLamlTE b . Lide . O

DI

\ Lo, Q
1. O

DILRS SiY IR

DILYh

DIMACT SRR
DIMETLRE oL
DIFHEMSY DRAMINE v o LML
DIUCARE Tiy ’

L
I
L
[T
Ty
[
B e .
PR -
:'.' i ]

COMOSO-5EL a0
COMNGRaR = e 200000
DOMMATAL LoD, 0
DOFENCA PO, 0
DORIDEM 13.0
DRAMAMINE 100,0
DROP-A-WEIGHT 13.0
DUIRIL 25.0
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-2 ITENSEN
DURICEF
LV CrReEME
DYRENIUM

E-FERQL

E-MYCIN

EASFRIN

ECOFROL

EDECRIN

EFEROL SUCCINATE
ZEL-FED-ROM
ELAVIL

ELDER
ELIXOPHYLUN SR
ELZYME

ELZYME Zoz
EMEDQ YAG FOaM
EMFLETS THROID
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DURON
MEURT v

T
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el LR S Eat
LAY S WY

EFILORT LOTION

ESIMIL
ESTRMAG
ESTROVIS
ETHATAL
ETHER

ETHE I
ETEAFGN

VWAL -U-GEN
EVACIUGEN
F-8-C-TAERS
FASTIN

FBEZ TABLETS
FEMCGEN

TABLE A

S00.0
10,0
7.0
800.0¢
200, 0
20.0
I00.0
19,0
SO.0
1G.0
S0.0

100,00
23,0
75.0
30.0

19.0
80,0

~eE -
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15,0
TL0
4,000, 0
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},
7 rOMDGEN CREAM

FEMOGEN SuFFP
FENROUS SULFATE
FENYL-C
FEOSOL
FERD-GRAD 500
FERR-DICAL
FERROM

FESTAL
FIBERCON
FIGGESIC
FLAGYL
FLATULENCE

FLEXERIL

Fi_LORONE OITMENT
FIAMULA K
FULVININ F-533I20

FURACIN CREAM

FiRRCIN YA Sies

= LUEADANT T

SMIMG

GLYCOTONE

i

GRIBAC

HEALUTETSTIN
HEFEP N YL

HE®

REMOCS THE
HEFA-DESICOL
HEFARIN SQDIUM

14,0
7.0
100, 0
- SIL0
25.0
200,00
SG.0
75,0
JO0.5
25,6
30.9
1,000.0
1,000,0
100.0

g30.9

I2.0

LG,
F.0
102,00
113,90
1450
’T.0
D00,

SO0,

-.I
Ty
P
<3, 5
-, .
R -
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L0
G )
S
R
4 ]
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—_ iy,
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o
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0
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Sl
100,0
SO0 O

15.0
800.0

10.0
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7 PLan
HE3PERIDIN-C
HEXA-BETALIN

HIFREX

HONEY BEE FOLEN
HYDDRELT
HYDELTRA-TEA
HYDERGINE

HYDRO-RESERF
HYDRODIURIL
HYDRODUR I
HYDROMG X

. HYDROFRES
HYDRYLLIN
HYGRO 10
HYGROTEN
HYGRCTON

LGYYCIN OINTME! ™
UIDUIED T

g
P N

T I
LS Taps

e Dl

L YT e,
h ul_'.J ML A

FOLANTYL WAFERS
FGLOYD
KUTROL
LANQIN

l Xl ¥

—it L X

TABLE A

10.0
3SC0.0
1.0
1060
28.0
73.0
- 8.0
3.0
40,0
10,0

<D

1,.300,.0
20.0
100.0
J300.0
25.0
=s.
100.0
SO0, 0
SO0.0
SO0 0

M =
- L
| TR

BRI

eIy

NI

-

e

P
.._.'.
n:v.|.

20

RS

.-

143, 0
30,0
14,0
400 .0
120.0
100.0
200.0
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)

LEVOFHEN

LEVSIN
LIBITATAES
LIBFRATABS
LIBRIUM

LIDOSFORIN OFTIC SoLUTION
LIMEITROL

LIVITAMIM

LIYA-FPLEX

LOFID

LCFFRESSOR

LCRUR N
LOTRIMIN
LUERIM

LUDTOMTL

[

MEFHD -5

[T o

SEFRSEAMGTE
MHEEESL
MESULFIN

METHYL TESTIS TERCONE

METHYL-TESTOSTERONE

TABLE A
10S.0

4,000.0
100.0

100,

)

20003

14.0

30,0
00,0
102G, 0

20,0
100.0
100, 0

00,0
500,90

73.0

S0

ZEL0

=
* Tita’
Ja—
=
T
10,3
3,0
LU

v ey
RO
— .
ST
) v

)

el

- |l<D -}

B

7y

. .l

L, ), 0

SO, 0
D000

TO.0
1000

1,000.0
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e AHYLTESTUSTERONE
METROP INE
MI-CEBRIN
MI-CEBRINT
MICRAININ
MIDRIN
MINICIN
MINIFRESS
MINIZIDE
MINOCIN
MISC CREMES
MOBRIFYN
MODANE
MCDANE FLUS
MODURECTIC
MCDUFRETIC
MONISTAT
MONISTATT
.MOTRIN

MUCAMIDE
MULTI VITAMIN
MULTI-METHYL AM

[ et Bl ey
M'--‘L-'Ai - HE TR

NEGREPT

MEC-3LTE0DIDE
MEC—MHYDRID wL IR
NEO=-MAGNACZORT o0 —n
NEOQCYLATE HCL
NECDEZADROM 37 Thes, -
MEDQEZRA S TnE

NEF ™ e

MEW T

4 T T P
I S LAY

A
ibi

D BT
[REENR Y S §

MIaTR T

AR Sty
HICSEID
A Tt e, e
HILOSPAN

NIFEREX

NILSTATE ORAL DROPS

MES-CURTISTAN OinTHE:,

TABLE A

10,000.0
200.0
75.0
00,0
100,00
100, 0
100,00
Z0.0

- 20,0
180,00
S.0
1.209.0
200,10
180,00
400, 0
27.0
2Z.0
6.0
SO0, 0

1,0

POO, O
S0

L0.0
1000

S0

TL0

S Ja
-~ ) .~;. '-
[
AL
SO
Je U
Lo
)
LU H)
L
.l.
.~y . -
H TN
Log it -

100 0
SRR
| AALN TR

&, i

12,0
10,0

48.0
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. TRO STAT
MITRO-BID
NITROBID

200.0
100,09
00,0
200.0

NITRCGLUETRON
NITRCOGLYCERIN 2000
NITROGLYN 180.0
NITEQSFAN 20,0
MITROSTAT-SR

MGCTEC

NOLAMIMNE
HCOLUDAFR
NORAFACE-CF 150
MORERAMIN
MORDETTE
NORDETTES
NORFL_EX
NORLESTRIN
NORMOBYME
NCEMODYNE
MIROX TN 400
MNORFACE 100, 0
MORFRAMIN 30.0
MOVAFED . \ 14,0
MOVAFED-4 10,0

NOVAHI ST INE

S0.0

&0 .0
100,00
TO.0
S0
170,00
100.0
357.9
181.0
100.0

8.0
200.0
100,70

SO.0

v

Lizan o

TOUD

.
M- DRON b SR
Mg e P
SR L T L6
MYLMERSTE I N g SLE
D -
ALY EREN
1]
H
Celi=T T 2.
CGEM IR
GFACETT oy NE
QET ImMINnE -

OR-ESTH | SRR
ORAMAG ==

URIMAG S0 0

JROMAY 10G.0
ORTHG-MGVUM 1/50 42,0
OFRUDIS 200.0
OTOMYXIN OFTIC SOLUTION 20.0

M e
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< ~=AL
OVYETATIN
F=200
PQLATHEIZINE
PALICYMIN-C
PANCREASE
PAPASE
PARAFCN FORTE

FARASED
FARLOID THYROID
FARMULIN,
FRTHIBAMTE
FATHILON

FAYA KEvY
. FAVABID

FAVABID HF
FAVALEEY

FAXIFAM
FEDIATAER

FEDICON
FENICTIL.LAN TARS
FENTRRONE
FENTRYATE
FERFLU_E

REE

L DL ACE

SRR ITHEMIN

e - s

(Y AR IR

FHEMES

LN

GLUCIOMATE

PGTASSIUM—PERMANGANATE
POTASSIUN~ELUCONATE

FRECCST TR 1iam e

TABLE A

210.0
70.0
1.0

PCO.0

1,000.0
19,0
23,0

100, 0
STR IR

190, 0
S,0485.0
J00.0
130.0
TGO, 0
&0.0
25.0
1090.0
100,00
200,00
QOO .0
20,0
25.0
P00, 0
75.0
FL£.0
270
10,0
209
Lo2aoon

S TEL

—~ -
- ) - '.)
TO.0

1 v-I"\ N

* -l - -
200,
5
N
LI
Wd,
ol
.
[ N
RASEIN
.

-

. .

I

-9

. ot

S
.,
g
e

[ an
oo s

1

L2900
1,000, 00
125,40

10G.0

L0005
100.0
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v WEDNICYL
FREDNISNOME
FREDNISGTONE
FREMARIN

FREMARIN CREAM
FRIODAX
FRO-AMS
FRO-BANTHINE
FRO-F WAFERS
RCBUTYLIN
FROCAN SR
FROCARDIA

. FROLIXIN
FROLOID
FROFAHIST
FROFAMINE FI_yusg
FROFCXFHENE
FROSTAFHLIM
FROTEIN
FROTETIM WAFEFRS

M wWAFREESy

[l WY ool
[P ¥ i

RENESSE
REFENDO

RFIcoE ThaC

TABLE A

S0.0

100,0

300,09
11Z.0

112.0
2.0

e e,
o d o S

1120
FOLD
1,006, 0
400.0
1,2%20.,0
25,9
30.0
100.0
400.0
15.0
S0.0
8.9,
0.0
&.0
25.9

1,3000,0

\ S0
2.0
T0.0

e

L, 00l D

00, 5

SO0.0
25.0

0.0
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TABLE A

1L DUFGTS
RITONIC -
ROBAXIN
ROBAXISAL
RODEX T.D.

3,000.0
190.0
400.,0

10,0

1 . DOO. 0O

800.0

L0000

ROMILAR 2000
ROMDGMYCIN T2
RONIACOL

S0O.0

40,0

RONIACOL TIMESFPAN 7S.0
FU~-LOR 10,0
FU~-VERT 20.0
. RU-VERT -M &.0
SANDOREX 2s5.0
SANOREX 400.0
&0, D

SCR-AF-ES SO,
SEATINE 2,400, 0
3EEIZON LOTION 2.0
SECTEA \ IO0.0
IEMICID I5.0
ZEMNOEDOT LIN.0

.0

e e
B Eonl ol LIRS

1. 5
1o

SIMNEME RO
SIMEQLAN IR
SINGLET ST

SINUBID

R

SRS UM Sl ISy ATE RN STHTHIN

SO,

100, 4

S50MA 24,0

15.0
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e ) e R et
SOMA Ccomp 28.0
20.0
SOMA COMP/CODIENE 100.0
80OMA COMPOUND 1,000.0
300,0
_75.0
SOMACORT 100, 0
SFARINE 15.0
SPAROLIN SOD.0
SFASTICAL sA JO0.0
SFECOLIN 2,000.0
SFORDSTACIN CREAM 288.0
96.0
_SPOROSTACIN 93.0
1.0
STATUSS 2T.0
STEAMINE QTIC 160.0
STELAZINE 40,0
S0.0
12.0
ETEFFISAL ' 1,000.0
STZRAMNE IO
STERC-2ARYVON 25,00
S TR-T2 HECIS
STRYCHNINE aULFA 1,000
STUART FRENAT 100,090
BUDAFED TO0.G
SULFA-CEZERYN CREME L.
S QQEIAZIJE DO,
'EL.-‘ .-:‘CETS -
SULFASTTIN CREME S
SULFATHIAZOLE RN I
SULFER FQWDER T30
FULFRELDIAZINE LN A

SULTRIM CREAM 445,
SUMY T I

-..nf'n_.,\
SUFEES= T
S f’C\E"' » LS00
5% MOFHYILLATE T,
=YMALAR CRESM IO
SYMAL.GOS 12,0
SYMNALOS 2800
SYNTHRQILD 2,100.0

130,

SO.0

S0.0

TAGAMET S0.0
' 20,0

16.0

. ~—a
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TAL~-ESTAMINE
TALACEN
TALUDGON
TALWIN

TANDEAQRIL
TAVIST

300.0
15.0
S00.0
S.0

. 20.0

TEDRAL

200.0
1006, 0
1S.0
TEDRAL 3A
TEDROL
TELERON
TEN—-K:

300.0
30.0
100.0

24.0
TENUATE DOSPAN %0.0
" TERIMINE 12.0

TERRA-CORTRIL ODNTMENT ’ 20.0

TERRAMYCIN —~ 100,0
15.9
TESSALON 28.0
TESTON SO.0
TETRACYN v . 19.0
THEO-24 ' 100.0
THED-DUR 10
THEC-NAR 10,0
THEGVER™ _ 10,0
THESA-COMEBE X Y5 I B!
28,
THERACAL v 1,0
THERAGEAN 10,
TAERAGRAM-M 2.
THERGAMN ' !
THERUHISTIN '
THIAMINE
THORAZINE T30
THYLDBENNGL%TE SO0
THYFCD TNE SO
THYFRGID PRI NTS T
R i)
EER TS
S 0
200, 0
LAY
I0O.0
THYROLOR 25.0
TIGAN 230.0

TIMOLIDE 300.0
TIN-TAES J00.0
TOFRAVIL 120.0
TOLERON ' 50.0
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- SFICYCLINE
TORECZA
TORR-LOSE
TRANDATE
TRI-AMINE
TRI-EBARBS
TRI-SULFATE
TRIAMINIC

TRIAVIL

TRIHEMIC

-TRILCIFON

TRILISATE

TRILISOTE

TRIMAGILL

TRIMFEX

TRIPHASIL-21
TRIPLE-SULFATE
TRMFAGESIC EAR DROFS
TROSE

= ———

-
. 'L lfq.__‘l o

UMTFEN
LUMNISSM
LIMENGUN
UNERNGCWN &lLUE Tarp

UNEMOWN S HIERIY
(] 3T S I :,.}

Uurh-vn FLWMRITE SaRs
S S O CHHITE aEs
L TN TARS

Ll e M b
Lindb Mgt
LN M we
UMENOWM

I - NP
BT S =T LU 2§ oY

ATAES

URIFASS
UROBIGTIC-Z2S0
UROBITIC
UTIEBED

TABLE A

3T0.0
100.0
S0.0
S590.0
400.0
75.0
S,000.0
“1E.0
10,0
00,0
15000
100.0
25.0
20.0

335.0
S500.0
2.0
100.0
40.0
20.0
105.0
1,000.90
1.0
1,000,0
SCG.0
250
1000,
R
L IRTH N
25,10
5.0
S.0

e
3500

-

20,0

11,1

Lo

Lot
<
-

AT

17,0

LI

S0

LEL0
12,0
S.000.0
100,
4.0

130.0
S$0.0
F0.0
=0 N

-

-
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o 7 CYS-TINE 800%o
VAGITRIC 6.0
VALETHAMATE EROMIDE < o
VALISONE SFRAY 176.0
VAL IUM 0.0

10.9

‘"’?-

VALRELEASE

-75.0
VANQCEID S12.9
12.0

8.0
4.0

-
e l)

VAONEID
VASCUL IN
VASODILAN

- VASOTEC
VASUTEC
VEETIDS
VEGA-TROL
VIERA-TARS
YVISKIN

2.0
135.0
100.0
20.0
50.90
S0.0
1,000.0
10.0

25.0

-t o b,

MISTARIL 00,0
75.0

CYFLUS 1S.0
TAE

4 i & Tans 1200.0

B * oy o= -

SITAMIN B 200, 0
bl -,!w’-':*; en i

VITHMIN 84
& E

185.0
4,000.0

4Ty e

L33, 0

1
WL TUWEILREY B
VILAXTIN
LI T e -

S

WHHGL
WHEAT 3ERM 1L o
HINSTROL b
WYANY T8 »
WYTES {5 U

.
<

2 . lj;‘?’_p.
B,
1,000,0
= i
-l oot
100G, 0

450, 0
1,C00.0
OO
200.0

ZYLOFRIN 2.0
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Donald R. Warehime, D.O. TABLE A
QUAALUDE 300 mg. 7 3/4
QUAALUDE 150 mg. 238
RITALIN 10 mg. 914

BIPHETAMINE RV
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negar, .’,bnndonenchheadofeachcas “L: OF otherwise represented ¢, .

TS of%containmgsuch i 5::,&:3 g is P ‘Obeh°"e)'!f of
aif@residence of the manufacturer, the date w; (B) e semblance of honey ang contajng w
magactured, and the words “cider vined® -" label tha¥@aplies the word “i&ﬁtaﬁon" ; if
VineQly shall not be branded “frujt vinegagfun- oroduce ol less of whether it co H sa
less iy made wholly from apples, gra ' !
other filis. fa

HISTONIY GC §5793; RS § 4200-54; 84 v 216 v 185, i us

14 E2 10 tif
Research 1 e, t la

Vinegar; Nileling: aw 37

2;1. g °‘£j§g 25, 29 representation is more 3,,'?{‘;;

- than the word *“blend d clearly ; in
- plying the existencg ts. an

§ 3715.3@ Prohibition agaiigt selling vine- ca

not made ofranded in com ance with law, de
GC § 12774) su

No person shalliin nufacturgifor sale, sell, de- ‘ Se
liver, or offer or pose for gl or have in his ‘
possession with inQkt to selfir deliver, vinegar i del
not made in compigace witlikections 3715.28 to re
3715.35, inclusive, the HlVised Code, or con- * ,
tained in packages Wbt hilded in compliance law
with such sections. [ADULTERATION AND MISBRANDIDNG

No perso;x shall . sectéorés d3715.28 to ] - vm‘
3715.36, inclusive, of NMRevised Co e. - - ..

Whoever violates thi3llction shall pay all nec- §3715.52 Prohibitions. of
essary costs and expeglil incurred in inspectin The following acts and causing them are pro. an;
and analyzing the vindl; hibited: to.

HISTORY: GC § 1277 BN 20033, 4200.54; 92 v { (A) The manufacture, sale, or delivery, holg. ace
$493 v 185, 04 En Lfss. ing or offering for sale of any food, drug, device, 37
Cross-References to Reflfed Secd or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded: cer

Penaity, RC § 3715088(C). (B) The adulteration or misbranding of apy Ise

: food, drug, device, or cosmetic: ’ (

CASEQFOTES A: (C) The receipt in commerce of any food, or
beli:rﬁ:cu'?:;a y f t!:m?;im?}? drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or tise
is sold or offereflfor sale by an misbranded, and the delivery or proffered deliv. list
poration, and offense is tria ery thereof for Pay or otherwise; . chs
in which suchillrticle is sold or (D) The sale, delivery for sale, holding for sale, cle
Meyer v. Statglif4 OS 242, 43 NE or offering for sale of any article in violation of nes
section 3715.61 or 3713.63 of the Revised Code: gre

§3713487 Branding of cic (E) The dissemination of any false advertise- prc
manufactulihg farmer. (GC § 5794 ment; . ) ) . anc

Sectioglf 3715.28 to 3715.36, inc () The refusal ok e enery or inspection. B

: . or to permit the taking of a sample, as author- -

ﬁ:l:ef e ;Pﬂ;" o :n;; :j’;‘g:e ized by section 3715.70 of the Revised Code: 1
five balils of pure cider or fruit vig (G) The giving of a guaranty or undertaking
vinegalimust be branded “domestic which guaranty or undertaking is false, except Cro
gar,” Jld marked with the name of by a person who relied on a guaranty or under- P
and date of its manufacture, taking to the same effect signed by, and contain- A
DRY: GC §5794; RS § 4200.54; 84 v 214 ing the name and address of the person residing
84 S 10133, in this state from whom he received in good P
faith thehfood, drug, device, or lcosfmeg‘c; ed
- . (H) The removal or disposal of a detain or

3715.38 [Labeling of honey.] embargoed article in violaggn of section 3715.55 St

0 person shall sell, offer, or expose fi of the Revised Code; .

product that is: (I) The alteration, mutilation, destruction. S,

(A) In the semblance of honey and labele 8.

obliteration, or removal of the whole or any part

- ==




157 , ' PURE FOOD AND DRUG LAW

§ 3715.52

of the labeling of, or the doing of any other act
with respect to a food, drug, device, or cosmetic,
if such act is done while such article is held for
sale and results in such article being misbranded;

(J) Forging, counterfeiting, simulating, or
falsely representing, or without proper authority
using any mark, stamp, tag, label, or other iden-
tification device authorized or required by regu-
lations promulgated under sections 3715.52 to
3715.72 of the Revised Code;

(K) The using, on the labeling of any drug or
in any advertisement relating to such drug, of
any representation or suggestion that any appli-
cation with respect to such drug is effective un-
der section 3715.65 of the Revised Code or that
such drug complies with the provisions of such
section; ’

(L) The sale, offering for sale, giving away, or
delivery at retail or to the consumer without a
prescription from a Ehysician, veterinarian, or
dentist of any drug which under federal or Ohio
law can be sold only on prescription;

(M) The using by any person to his own ad-
vantage, or revealing, other than to the director
of agriculture or to the courts when relevant in
any judicial proceeding under sections 3713.32
to 3715.72 of the Revised Code, any information
acquired under authority of sections 3715.01 and
3715.52 to 3715.72 of the Revised Code, con-
cerning any information which as a trade secret
is entitled to protection;

(N) The issuance by the manufacturer, packer,
or distributor of a dangerous drug of any adver-
tisements, catalogues, or price lists, except those
lists specifically designed for disseminating price
change information. that do not contain in
clearly legible form the name and place of busi-
ness of the manufacturer who mixed the final in-
gredients and if different, the manufacturer who
produced the drug in its finished dosage form
and, if different, the packer or distributor,

HISTORY: 127 v 819 (Eff 9-13-57); 129 v 582 (799) (Ef
1-10-61); 137 v S 43. Eff 1-1-78.

The effective date of S 45 is set by section 3 of the act.

Cross-References to Related Sections

Penalty, RC § 3715.99(D).

Applicability of RC §§3715.52 to 3715.71 to the
sale of shell eggs when not in conflict with RC
§§925.02 to 925.07.1, RC §925.02.

Pharmacists; disciplinary action by state board of
pharmacy for willful violation of RC 3§ 3715.52
to 3715.92, RC § 4729.16.

See RC §§ J715.01, 3713.52, 3715.534-3715.57,
3715.59, 3715.60, 3715.63-3715.71 which refer
to RC §§3715.52 to 3715.72.

See RC 5§ 3715.01, 3715.53, 3715.54, 3715.99
which refer to this section.

Ohio Administrative Code
Display of placard. OAC 901:3-23-02._

Comparative Legislation

Adulteration of food:
Cal.—Health & Safety Code §§ 26520 et seq
Fla.—Stat. Ann. § 300.10
Il.—-Ann. Stat. ch. 56%, § 506
Ind.—Code §16-1-29-2 et seq
Ky.—Rev. Stat. Ann. § 217.025
Mich.—Comp. Laws Ann. §289.716
N.Y.—Agrie. & Mkts. Law § 198 et seq
Pa.—Stat. Ann, tit. 31, §1 et seq

Misbranding food and drugs:
Cal.—Health & Safety Code §§ 26550, 26630
Fla.—-Stat. Ann. §$3500.11, 500.15%
[I.—Ann. Stat. ch. 56%, § 508

i
]
=

Mich.—Comp. La k
N.Y.—-Agric. & Mkts. Law § 201
Pa.—Stat. Ann. tit. 31, §1 et seq

Research Aids

Adulteration and misbranding:

O-Jur2d: Drugs §§ 11, 14; Food §§ 10, 14; Wts
& M §20

Am-Jur2d: Food $§$.21.26 B

Civil liability; practice and procedure:
.0-Jur2d: Food §§352, 57
Am-Jur2d: Food §84 et seq

Criminal liability; practice and procedure:
O-Jur2d: Food § 43
Am-Jur2d: Food § 74 et seq

ALR
Adulterated: coustruction and application of Fed-
eral Food, Drie, and Cosmetic Act § 402(a)(3)
as to food deemed “adulterated,” if it is filthy
or the like, or unfit for food. 45 ALR2d 861.

Law Review

Advertising of food and drugs: concealing a truth,
hinting a lie. Comment. Barry S. Donner. 8 Akron
LRev 436 (1973).

Consumer protection in Ohio against false adver-
tising and deceptive practices. James W. Carpenter.
32 OSLJ 1 (1971). :

Products liability — the test of consumer expecta-
tion for “natural” defects in food products. Note.
Charles Robert Janes. 37 OSL]J 634 (1976).

Reasonable certainty of no harm: reviving the safe-
ty standard for food additives, color additives, and
animal drugs. Daryl M. Freedman. 7 EcologyL.Q
245 (1978).

The product liability of manufacturers: an under-
standing and exploration. Donald M. Jenkins. 4
AkronLRev 133 (1971).

Unwanted pregnancy and the pill—the question of
liability of the manufacturer. Note. James M. Bor-
dicks. 41 CinLRev 335 (1972).

CASE NOTES AND OAG

1. (1966) A company selling seasonings to a meat
packing company is negligent per se in the sale of
adulterated food products in violation of RC §§ 3715.-
59 and 3715.52 where adulterated seasonings caused
spoilage of hot dogs: Taylor v. B. Heller and Com-
pany, 364 F2d 608 (6thCir).

2. (1968) Disclosures of trade secrets by an em-
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emmanm——

CISION UNDER FORMER SECTION 37198

Thefederdcowuhvenowﬂmrityhor
cementofthepurefoodlawsby b
R4 commissioner of Ohio: Arbuckle v k-
Fed 6186, 51 CCA 122, 13 OFD 4

glterated” within the meaning of this secton

, %ﬁ:vﬁl, pds.
‘$ JW15.61 Powers of director.
(A) gRenever the director of agriculturfilfinds

and
burn,

§3

.62 Unsafe food.

in\gktigation that the distribution this  Any polloous or deleterious subsiiice added
ﬁ:of classoffoodmy.by on of to any fod except where such Mbstance ig
contaminaliin with nﬁcroor%:zisnnd i manu- required in A production thereofflf cannot be
facture, prigiessing, or packing th in any avoided by god manufacturing tice, shall be
locality, be Wjurious to health, andfat such unsafe for purpd of the applicdllon of division
injurious na cannot be adequatelyftermined (B) of section 37X59 of the Réleed Code, but
after such arflles have entered cofifierce, and when such substan®is so eqyiied or cannot be
in such case diy, he shall propodifregulations so avoided, the d of agifulture shall
for adoption biithe public healtjilifa ncll pro- pose regulations forfdoniudl by the public
viding the ace, to mar . pro- ﬁ:a]th council limiting hhod uantity therein or
cessor(s], or packi@ of sich c t food in such thereon to such extent M directs finds neces-
locality, of permiflito which #lll be attached sary for the protection o iblic health, and any
such conditions gofliming the anufacture, pro- quantity exceeding the B so fixed shall also
cessing, or packing WK such s food, for such be deemed to be unsafedll poses of the appli-

temporary rrlod Ofgme, gggmay be necessary cation of division (B)
to protect the public Wkalthdlind after the effec Revised Code. hi

is
tive date of such reglatidlE and during such effect limiting the q ity of

temporary period, no Vs shall introduce or in the case of any ..

deliver for introduction commerce any such reason of bearin any added

DSTANC

food manufactured, prod

d, or packed by any amount of such
such manufacturer, prod

or, or packer unless adyiterated with

e meaning o

such manufacturer, progilibor, or packer holds a of section 371389 of the Revise: o. In
permit issued by the or as provided by determining quantity of such Yded sub-
such regulations. stance to be ated in or on differdl articles

(B) The director is JktHlzed to suspend im- of food, the flfector shall take into acllint the
mediately upon noti ) mit issued under extent to wilfh the use of such subdfnce is
authority of this sectillh if Wl is found that any required orfnnot be avoided in the profiction

of the conditions of #lle pellbit have been vio. of each $i¥h article and the other
lated. The holder offlf permMiko suspended shall which consumer may be affected b
be privileged at anfiitime t pply for the re- same or fler poisonous or deleterious substa
instatement of such #lirmit, arilithe director shall,  misTQNF: 127 v 819 (27), 31 (22 91347); 129
immediately after pilinpt b g and om inspec-  (803), ER 1.10-61.

ton of the establ; puent, reifgiate such permit Crosgiieferences to Related Sections

if it is found that nequate megrures have been " terated” in re meat inspection, RC §918.0

in
the

taken to comply vilh and maintiilh the conditions
of the permit, as Mlginally issueqibr as amended. OW Administrative Code _
(C) The direq shall have adilkss to any fac- eat, poultry, and fish. OAC Chapter 901:3-31.

. tory or establi ent, the operatofif which holds .

a x1:»7':rmil: from e director for thdllurpose of as. ;3'&1;:&:; preservatives:

certaining whilher. or not the cofflitions of the O-Jur2d: Food § 14

permit are h Ag complied with, Wd denial of Am-Jur2d: Food §§23, 24

access for Inspection shall be glind for sus.

pension of permit until such ad

is freely
given by tiiloperator.

§3715.63 Adulterated drugs.

(‘::;’:‘:" eI, 81 @a say A drug or device is adulterated within the
T meaning of sections 3715.01 and 371552 to

Cross-Reflifences to Related Sections 3715.72, inclusive, of the Revised Code, if:

See HN'S$ 3715.52 which refers to this sdion. (A) It consists, in whole or in part, of any

Reseacll Aids flthy, putrid, or decomposed substance.

129 v 382

. - . (B) It has been produced, processed, prepared,
- m‘g‘ﬁd E;'ﬁffj,d g'g; by district board of Wkalth: packed, or held under insanijtary comg':om
m-Jur2d: Food § 57 whereby it may have been contaminated with
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flth, or whereby it may have been rendered statute is enacted; and a subsequent edition

injurious to health.

(C) It is a drug and its container is com

in whole or in part, of any poisonous or delet-

erious substance which may render the contents

injurious to health.
(D) It is a drug and it bears or contains, for
purposes of coloring only, a coal-tar color other
one from a batch certified under the author-
ity of the “Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic

Act.”

(E) It rts to be or is resented as a
drug thep:argzoe of which is rer:ggnized in an
official compendium, and its strength differs from,
or its quality or purity falls below the standard
set f in such compendium. Such determina-
Hon as to strength, quality, or purity shall be
made in accordance with the tests or methods of
assay set forth in such compendium, or in the
absence or inadequacy of such tests or methods
of assay, those prescribed under the authority of
the federal act. No drug defined in an official
compendium is adulterated under this division
because it differs from the standard of strength,
quality, or purity therefor set forth in such com.
pendium, if its difference in strength, quality, or
purity from such standard is plainly stated on
its label. Whenever a drug is recognized in both
the United States pharmacopoeia and the homoe-
opathic pharmacopoeia of the United States, it
shall be subject to the requirements of the United
States pharmacopoeia unless it is labeled and
offered for sale as. a homoeopathic drug, in which
case it shall be subject to the provisions of the
homoeopathic pharmacopoeia of the United
States and not to those of the United States
pharmacopoeia.

(F) It is not subject to the provisions of divi-
sion (E) of this section, and its stren differs
from, or its purity or quality falls below that
which it purports or is represented to possess.

(G) Itis a drug and any substance has been:-

(1) Mixed or packed therewith so as to reduce
its quality or strength;

(2) Substituted wholly or in part therefor.

HISTORY: 127 v 819 (828), g 1 (EX 9-13.57); 129 v 582
(806), §1. E2 1-10-51.

Forms
Food and drugs, 2 Ohio Civ. Prac. §63.01.

Research Aids
What constitutes adulteration:
O-Jur2d: Drugs § 12
Am-Jur2d: Drugs § 29

DECISIONS UNDER FORMER SECTION 3715.04

1. In the absence of a specific statutory reference
to a designated edition of the pharmacopoeia, a
statute which adopts the pharmacopoeia as a stan.
dard refers to that edition which is in use when the
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adopts a higher standard is not to be apl;li,dwhkh pre
standnd,htheabsenceofashowm;tb‘t"‘ spt
edition established the same standard a calh sta
edigon with ssreggence to the drug in question; shi: anc
;. ?’Pl:;&' i 364, 45 NE 319; Emery . State, a::;
. Since whi ey is recognized in the Up; i
pharmacopoeia, which is adopted by th;: 'i:ft,,s,':'“ ' (
i3 to be regarded as a drug within the meapnin,’ it tity
‘tijik section: State v. Hutchinson, 58 Og 82, 4335&:‘ euc
3. This section, relative to the sa car
tion of drugs, including whiskey, s pha._s dulter. dei
defined, applies only to whiskey when man ald
‘and sold as a drug; whiletheliquacontrohcg(cc che
§6064-1 [RC §3 4301.01, 4303.01]) deals with i .
toxicating and spiritous liquors “8t for use fo bey. nv:
erage purposes . . . by €T name calleg~, anc
State ex rel Wetterstroem v. ot of : adc
Control, 129 OS 185, 1 00 573, 194 NE 3yq- 90 as,
4. The department of liquor control and ity dir
tor are not amenable to, and need 3"t comply wg_ . anc
provisionsofthissecﬁon.CC\‘mamds-,a‘ der
(RC 3§3715.02 and 3715.05) of the’ pure food ang - stal
drug law, pertaining to the sale and labeling of . (
B s TN e o Mo o
en uor Con 0 )
573, 194 :gs d37z S 185, 100 unl
S. An vit which charges the accused |
having for sale a dru “whiih differed &ommu:': - a.n§
standard of strength laid down in said United Statey (
pharmacopoeia” and which does not show in whe : .
respect the said drug differed from said standard, ’ ing
is indefinite and insu%cient: Groenland v. State, 4 act
NP 122, 6 OD 313 (affirmed, without report, 39 Buj] tity
2]. : clu
uz
chl
nojg
nic
bai
der
cor
. pli
bel containing lL:tE
(a) In clearly le? ame and place the
business of the , packer, or dis- (
of the quantity of t
t, measure, or nu- the
ariations shall be wh
ag:
ad:
ang
use
clearly legible form (
ess of the manufacturer ¥ of .
an!
tec
pre
Oy or_under authority of sections ads
And 3713.52 to 37135.72 of the Revised fro

-A



5
-3 5‘.

‘or holds, if appli-
ew drug applica.
1ew drug applica.
law or from the
Jon is required.

enerically equiva-
ctons 3715.01 to
has been listed by

stration as having
tions 3715.52 to

¢ misbranded be-
or if an advertise-
¢ it is misleading,
labeling or adver-
| be taken into ac-
ly representations
word, design, de-
.tion thereof, but
al in the light

| with respect
om the use of the

& in

)
the
rescribed
a?or under axch
IOl’m‘l‘ M
1e selling of

1de the manufer
dng, exposure,

food,
ent, but do not prohik

Y, delivery, or disper
gs at th:egholsale
sumer and shall be exclu
e, offering for sale, giving
ing in any manner o
d retail levels or to the
Te prescriptions are dis
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(C) To assist i
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of person donating perishab} " deine, heroin, mariju
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§3715.64 Misbrandeq drug,
(A) A drug or device is m

isbranded within the
Beaning of sections 3715.01 a
o the if:

nd 3715.52 to 3715.72
e, if:
(1) Its labeling is false or misleading in any par-
D Itisin Package form and does not bear a la.
Coutaining:

;' legible form the nam

e and place of
€ manufacturer, pac

ker, or distriby.

h y descriptive materia] identifying the
mark or imprint used by the o

tributor. The board of pharmacy shall provide this
information to all poison
state. Upon application by a manufacturer or dis-
tributor, the board may exempt a drug from the
requiremensofthkdividononthemundsthnt
marking or imprinting such drugs is not feasible
because of its size, texture, or other unique charac.
teristic,

(5) Any word, statement, or other information
required by or ynder authority of sections 3715.01
and 3715.52 vo 3715.72 of the Revised Code, to ap-
pear on the label or labeling is not i
placed thereon with such conspicy

pared with other words, statements, designs, or de-
vices, in the labeling, and in such terms as to ren.
der it likely to be read and understood by the

tity of the narcotic or hypnotic substance alpha-
eucaine, barbituric acid, beta-eucaine, bromal
cannabis, cabromal, chioral

td

» toca, cocaine, co-
&na, morphine, opjum,

regulations proposed
by the public heaith council designated as, habit
forming, unless its labe] bears the name and
tity or proportion of such substance or derivative

by the director and adopted

and in juxtaposition therewith th
“Warning—May be habit forming.”

(7) Itis a drug and itisnotdedgmtedsoldybya
name recognized in an official compendium unless
its label bears: '

() The common or usual name of the drug, if

any;

e statement
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(b) In case it is fabricated from two or more in-
gredients, the common or usual name of each ac-
tive ingredient, including the kind and quantity or
proportion of any alcohol, and also including
whether active or not, the name and quantity or
proportion &f any bromides, ether, chloroform, ace-

any

extent that compliance with these
impracticable, exemptions shall be established by
regulations by the director and adopted
by the public health council.

(8) Its labeling does not bear:

(a) Adequate directions for use;

(b) Such adequate warnings against use in those
pathological conditions or by children where its use
may be dangerous to health, or against unsafe dos-
age or methods or duration of administration or ap-
plication, in such manner and form, as are neces-
sary to the protection of users;

(c) Where compliance with any requirements of
division (A)(8)(a) of this section, as applied to any
drug or device, is not necessary for the protection of
the public health, the director shall propose and
the public health council shall adopt regulations ex-
empting such drug or device from such require-
ments.

(9) It purports to be a drug the name of which is

in an official compendium, unless it is
ged and labeled as prescribed therein, but the
method of packing may be modified with the con-
sent of the director. Whenever a drug is recognized
in both the United States pharmacopoeia and the
homeopathic pharmacopoeia of the United States,
it shall be subject to the requirements of the United
States pharmacopoeia with to packaging
and labeling unless it is labeled and offered for sale
as a homeopathic drug, in which case it shall be
subject to the provisions of the homeopathic phar-
macopoeia of the United States, and not to those of
the United States pharmacopoeia.

(10) It has been found by the director to be a
drug liable to deterioration, unless it is packaged in
such form and manner, and its label bears a state-
ment of such precautions, as required by regula-
tions proposed by the director and adopted by the
public health council ‘as necessary for the protec-
tion of public health. No such regulation shall be
established for any drug ized in an official
compendium until the director has informed the
appropriate body charged with the revision of such
compendium of the need for such packaging or la-
beling requirements and such body has failed
within a reasonable time to prescribe such require-
ments.

(11){a) It is a drug and its container is so made,
formed, or filled as to be misleading.

(b) It is an imitation of another drug.

(c) It is offered for sale under the name of an-
other drug.

(d) The drug sold or dispensed is not the brand
or drug specifically prescribed or ordered or, when

by a pharmacist upon prescription, is

neither the brand or drug prescribed nor a generi.
cally equivalent drug.

(12) It is dangerous to heaith when used in the
dosage, or with the frequency or duration pre-
scribed, recommended,

or suggested in the labeling

(13) It is a drug intended for use by man which:

(s) Because of its toxicity or other potentiality foe
harmful effect, or the method of its use, or the col-
lateral measures necessary to its use, is not safe for
use except under the supervision of a physician,
dentist, veterinarian, or person licensed to pre-
scribe any drug which, under the federal act, fed-
eral narcotic law, as defined in section 4729.02 of
the Revised Code, and under sections 3715.01 to
3715.75, or Chapter 3719. of the Revised Code,
may be dispensed only upon & p ption;

(b) Is limited by an effective a tion under
section 505 of the “Federal Food, Drug, and Cos-
metic Act” to use under professional supervision by
a physici:ln, dentist, or veterinarian, unless it is dis-

only:

(i) Upon a written prescription of a physician,
dentist, or veterinarian;

(ii) Upon the oral prescription of a physician,
dentist, or veterinarian which is reduced promptly
to writing by the pharmacist; -

(iii) By refilling any such written or oral pre-
scription if such refilling is authorized by the pre-
scriber either in the original prescription or by oral
order which is promptly reduced to writing by the
pharmacist.

(B) Any drug dispensed by filling or refilling a
written or oral prescription of a physician, dentist,
veterinarian, or person licensed to prescribe any
drug which, under the federal act, federal narcotic
law, as defined in section 4729.02 of the Revised
Code, or under sections 3715.01 to 3715.75, or
Chapter 3719. of the Revised Code, may be dis
pensed only upon a prescription shall be exempt
from the requirements of this section except divi-
sions (A)(1) and (11) of this section if the drug bears
a label containing the name and address of the dis-
penser, the serial number and date of the prescrip-
tion or its filling, the name of the prescriber, and, if
stated in the prescription, the name of the patient,

and the directions for use and cautionary state-
ments, if any, contained in the prescription. Unles
the prescription directions prohibit labeling, the la-
bel shall inciude the brand name of the drug dir
pensed. If the drug dispensed has no brand name,
the generic name and the distributor of the finished
dosage form shall be included. This exempgion shall
not apply to any drug dispensed in the course of the

conduct of a |
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*HISTORY: DS v H 135. Eff 1138,

The effective date provisions of § 3 of HB 133 (130 v —)
read as follows:

Sscion 3. The requirement of division (A)(4) of section
3715.64 of the Revised Code that manufacturers and dis-

January 1, 1962. No criminal penalty shall be imposed for
the sale, or delivery, or holding

for sale of any misbranded drug as defined
(A)(4) of section 3715.64 of the Revised Code unles such
drug was manufactured on or after July 1, 19682,

(B) “Milk products’

lisement of food, giig, device, or wholesome cream, p
cosmetic is fdil if it is false or ng in any evaporated milk, skimm
particular. ' sweetened condensed

(B) For the bns 3715.01 and milk, sweetened condfii

3715.52 to 3718. d Code, the adver- milk, and dried skimnfiid o
tisement of a drudiir device flibresenting it to have (C) “Ice cream™ gifans &
any effect in albun pendicitis, arterioscle- product made fromflf comb
rosis, blood poison, ease, Bright’s disease, of the following i
cancer, carbuncles, v titis, diabetes, diphthe- water, and sugar Jith mies
ria, dropsy, erysipel tones, heart and vascu-  or without harmil8 coloring,
lar diseases, high bloodililessure, mastoiditis, mea- added stabilizer bmposed of
sles, meningitis, mun nephritis, otitis media, material. It confilifns not more th
paralysis, pneumoniaf8bmyelitis (infantile pa- per cent by

ralysis), prostate gl difirders, pyelitis, scarlet per cent by ght of milk fat, anfilaot less than
fever, sexual impotedife, sitflinfection, tuberculo- eighteen per Mt by weight of tod! solids;
sis, tumors, typhollf uremiffivenereal disease, is except when t, nuts, cocoa or chdillate, maple
also false, except St no advéililsement not in vio-  syrup, cakedlior confections are the pur-.

on is false under pose of flayilfing, then it shall contain
to members of ten per cefifby weight of milk fat and
or veterinary eighteen Sl cent by weight of total m
tific periodi-  cept for iich reduction in milk fat and in
whenever solids, glfis due to the addition of such

lation of divisioflfA) of this sd
this division if iflf disseminated d
the medical, d , pharmaceuti
profession, ogfiibpears only in the s
cals of thesgirofessions; provided,

less than
ess than
ds, ex-
milk
oring,

the directoiBf agriculture determined{ihat an ad- but in 8 such case shall it contain less tA eight

vance in niifical science has made any Wie of self- per cefll by weight of milk fat nor less thil four-
" medicatighf safe as to any of the dise: named teen Ol cent by weight of total milk solidfRn no

above, SR director shall propose regulal for case any ice cream weigh less than fo nd

adoptigifby the public health council autiNBizing one-q pounds per gallon.

the agiifrtisement of drugs having curative o r- ¥ ‘Frozen custard” means custard ice créfiin,

ap effect for such disease, subject to such 8-  ice Mistard, parfaits, and similar frozen prod

ditjifls and restrictions as the director may ded Fglien custard is a clean, wholesome prodd
Ess in the interests of public health; prd pdiide from a combination of two or more of tH
Bed, that this division shall not be construed as lowing ingredients: milk products, eggs, wa
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orovisions of sections 3715.01 or 3715.52 i ct with sections 923.41 to 923.55, incl
2. inchnidve, of the Revised Code, are bflle  anW@-tion 923.99 of the Revised Code.
viold: . ( gctions 3715.52 to 3715.71, inclusijl of
- (BNglo secure samples of specimens gfifany the Rd d Code do not permit the maflifac-
food, Y2, device, or cosmetic after pa "g or  ture, sal@or offering for sale, of any foodlfdrug,
offering A pay for such sample. cosmetic,@ device otherwise prohibitediby any
The digtor or the board of pham shall provision Jhe Revised Code or by regu-
make or ciiige to be made examinatioglfof sam- [ations pro ated pursuant to any gfvision of
les secure nder the provisions of section the Revised (M ; nor do sectio 1552 to
to determin@@whether or not any g isiops of 3715.71, incl of the Revised ffde or any
sections 37108l and 3715.52 to 33 272, inclu-  regulations there der, prohibit sale or of-
sive, of the Rqgised Code, are beingviolated. fering for sale, o food, drufcosmetic, or
HISTORY: 19.(833), 81 (XX QUFIT); 129 v 381 {eyice through any'tlet wher, h items are -
@12), 0 1. I® 11 now permitted by anWarovisiofilf of the Revised
Cross-References t@Related Sectig Code to be sold or offeRlL for gie.
See RC §3715.538vhich refers Sl this section. HISTORY: 127 v 819 (834) (F) s 129 v 582 (812) (ES
. 1-10-61); 130 v 853 (E# 7-26-43 H 1. E€ 3-20-71.
R“.;'ch Ai;:::t of la Cross-References to Related on:
B azd: Dougs See RC §3715.01 whichliferdl this section.
{ Am-Jur2d: Drugs Research Aids
i ' En&}c:;:nt D:fx law: 13
§3715.71 Publiilibn of reports on judg- e &
ments; dispensing of injlimation.

The director of kiculture or the board §3715.73
of (:h)amacy may causqiifiile published from time feited bonds.
to time reports sumniifilllo a]l judgments, de- (A) All fines
crees, and court ordegiivhlilh have been rendered collected und
under sections 3715/ an@l3715.52 to 37185.72, agriculture g
inclusive, of the Hilrised WRode, including the director in
nature of the charglifand t’disposition thereof. 3715.72, ig

isposition of B d for

forfeited bonds assess@i\and T
prosecution by the direcfiil of

prosecution commenced by
torcement of sections 3715.01
ive, of the Revised Code, sha

(B) The directoflor the Wbard of pharmacy within thj days, be paid to the director and
may also cause tofile dissem§ted such informa- by him ol into the state treasury.
d tion regarding fogllf drugs, deflikes, and cosmetics (B) A fines or forfeited bonds assessed and

as the director qithe board qllpharmacy deems collectdl under prosecution by the board of

necessary in interest of WAblic health and pharg or prosecution commenced by the

the protection the consu against fraud. an in enforcement of sections 3715.01 to

Nothing in section shallflle construed to 72, inclusive, of the Revised Code, shall,
rohibit the g or or the bdild of pharmacy in thirty days, be paid to the secretary of the
m collectilll, reporting, and ustrating the - Wrd and by him paid into the state treasury.

rasults of thelhvestigations of th@lirector or the  HISTORY: 130 v 853, §1. E s.19.63,

board of philfmacy.

HISTORY: v 819 (833), 31 1.1
(812), 8 1. EEF1-1061.
Research

Enforceflnt; prosecution:
O-Jullll: Drugs §§ 13, 14

57); 129 v 3582

§ 3715.99 Penalties.

(A) Whoever violates sections 3715.13 to
715.19, 3715.25 to 3715.27, or 3715.38 of the
evised Code is guilty of a minor misdemeanor.
(B) Whoever violates section 3715.22,
715.25. 3715.26, 3715.27, or 3715.34 of the Re.
§ 15.72 Administration; dilleptions. is}:d Code is guilty of i 34 of the Re
(Afbections 3715.01 and 3715.52 } 715.71,
inciilive, of the Revised Code shall be
by d be administered in accordance
' 5 119.01 to 119.13, inclusive, of thelllevi
le

(C) Whoever violates section 371523 or
3715.36 of the Revised Code is guilty of a mis-
demeanor of the second degree.

(D) Whoever violates section 371552 or
3715.65 of the Revised Code is guilty of a mis-
demeanor of the fourth degree on a first offense;
on each subsequent offense such person is guilty

B) Sections 3715.01 and 3715.52 to ‘JW5.71,
lusive, and section 3713.99, of the i
ode, do not apply when such sections W i
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of a misdemeanor of the second degree.
HISTORY: Bureau of Code Revision (Eff 10-1-53); 127 v 819
(834) (ER 9-13-57); 138 v H 396 (Ef 10-31-73); 136 v § 33. E

— 1

Cross-References to Related Sections
Penalty for misdemeanor, RC

§29299;1. .
misdemeanor, RC § 2929.21(D). B2 ming
1-1-77.

See RC $§§3715.54, 3715.7

The effective date of SB 38 is set by §3 of the act. section.
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. trolled st

CRIMES—PROCEDURE

By force, threat, or deception, administegfil
an or induce or cause another to use a gn-
trollll substance:

(2 any means, administer or fur to
anothef§ier induce or cause another to usefl¥f con-
nce with purpose to cause serigfif phys-
ical harm\@ such person, or with purposefib cause
such persoriil become drug dependent;

(3) By arfAmeans, administer or §fnish to
another or i e or cause another to flle a con-
trolled subst and thereby cause seriglis physical
harm to such pdillon, or cause such persglito become

drug dependen

(4) By any megihs, furnish or admingifer to a per-
son under age eidiikeen who is at least] years his
junior, or induce Yl cause a person u age eight-
een who is at leasf years his junijlf to use a con-
trolled substance, nduce or ca person under
age eighteen who iflit least four yglls his junior to
commit 2 felony g abuse offfiise, where the

offender knows the 3 of such peflibn or is reckless
in that regard.
(B) Division (A)(1) ), or (4)
not apply to manufactiikrs, whg
ers, pharmacists, owndiliof p
persons whose conduct ac
ters 3719., 4715., 4720447
Revised Code.
(C) Whoever violates t
rupting another with drugd
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acies, and other
dance with Chap-
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tion is guilty of cor-

any compound. mix-
included in schedule
ihuana. corrupting
e first degree and

the court shall imposedientendlilf actual incarcera-
tion of seven years, afilfif the off@lder has previously
been convicted of gfiltlony drugiiibuse offense, the
court shall impose fllentence of a@al incarceration
of twelve years.

(2) If the druglihvolved is any @npound, mix-
ture, preparatiogiior substance inclqiikd in schedule
L 1V, or V, cqlilupting another wifldrugs is a fel-
ony of the secoriidegree and the couriiball impose a
sentence of acyill incarceration of th years. and
if the offenderfilis previously been conWiited of a fel

offense, the court shall
incarceration of five ve.
ug involved is marihuana.
drugs is a felony of the fou
shall impose a sentence of acf
three months. and if the offend as pre
Deen convicted of a felony drufilabuss
the court shall impose a sentence offiictu.
ration of six months.
ORY: 136 v H 300. Eff 7-1-76.
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finitions applicable to drug offenses, RC § 3719.01.

ptingg

318

- e ——
ng abuse offense defined, RC § 2925.01.
gdependentdm mpammdeﬁnd,dﬁnic $3719.01.1,
ny drug RC § 2925.01(7),
Fogldefined, RC § 2901.01(A). ! ® :
hgly defined, RC § 2901.22(B).

Plefiling, RC § 2941.11.
Prod § 2048.75.
Serious §

cal harm o persous defined, RC 2% D1.01(E),

Comp ks \
Corrupting ther with drugy:

21 USC ¢

CA—Haealth §§ 11104, 11360

IL—Ann Stat B § 1102

IN—Code § 3% -1

KY--Rev Stat 218A.140, .990

MI—Comp La §333.740

NY—Penal Law § 0. 31220

PA—CSA tit 35 § 750NN 3
Text Discussion
Elements of offense. 1 Ohid A. Prac. & Pro. 02,12
Forms BRI
Corrupting another with YD § 525.02
Statutory charge. 2A Ol Crim . & Pro. 8.128,

Research Aids

Corrupting another, drugs:
O-Jurdd: Crim 2279, 2280
Am-Jur2d: D §27.13-27.19

ALR
Criminality of
from w,
1072,
Crimin

ni

of directing to, or recomm

ng, source
h illicit drugs may be purchas

2 ALR3d

fur-
32

bility for death resulting from unla
g intoxicating liquor or drugs to ano
13d 589.

Giviglfselling, or prescribing dangerous drugs as con
ting to the delinquency of a minor. 36 ALR3d 1292"

§ 2925.03 Trafficking in drugs.

lowing:

(1) Sell or offer to sell a controlled substance in an
amount less than the minimum bulk amount as

defined in section 2925.01 of the Revised Code-

able cause to believe such drug is intended for sale or

resale by the offender or another;

(3) Cultivate, manufacture, or otherwise engage
in any part of the production of a controlied sub-

stance:

(4) Possess a controlled substance in an amount
equal to or exceeding the bulk amount but in an

amount less than three times that amount:

(5) Sell or offer to sell a controlled substance in an
amount equal to or exceeding the bulk amount but

in an amount [ess than three times that amount;

(A) No person shall knowingly do any of the fol-

(2) Prepare for shipment, ship, transport, deliver,
prepare for distribution, or distribute a controlled
substance, when the offender knows or has reason-




-

X A B s e, TR

319 DRUG OFFENSES

§ 2925.03

{8) Pc-.?'wtroued substance in an amount
equal to or excesding three times the bulk amount:

(7) Sell or offer to sell 2 controlled substance in an
amount equal to or exceeding three times the bulk
amount;

(8) Provide money or other items of value to
another person with the purpose that the recipient of
the money or items of value would use them to
obtain controlled substances for the purpose of sell.
ing or offering to sell such controlled substances in
amounts exceeding a bulk amount or for the purpose
of violating division (A)(3) of this section.

(B) This section does not apply to manufacturers,
practitioners, pharmacists, owners of pharmacies,
and other persons whose conduct s in accordance
with Chapters 3719., 4715., 4729., 4731., and 4741.
of the Revised Code.

(C) If the drug involved is any compound, mix-
ture, preparation, or substance included in schedule
[ with the exception of marihuana or in schedule II,
whoever violates this section is guilty of aggravated
trafficking.

(1) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(1) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel-
ony of the third degree, and if the offender has previ.
ously been convicted of a felony drug abuse offense,
aggravated trafficking is a felony of the second

(2) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(2) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel.
ony of the third degree, and if the offender has previ-
ously been convicted of a felony drug abuse offense,
aggravated trafficking is a felony of the second
degree. '

(3) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(3) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel-
ony of the second degree and the court shall impose a
sentence of actual incarceration of three years and if
the offender has previously been convicted of a fel.
ony drug abuse offense, aggravated trafficking is a
felony of the first degree and the court shall impose a
sentence of actual incarceration of five years.

(4) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(4) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel-

ird degree and the court shall impose &
sentence of actual incarceration of eighteen months
and if the offender has previously been convicted of
4 felony drug abuse offense, aggravated trafficking
_infdonyoftheseeonddegreennd the court shall
mpase & sentence of actua] incarceration of three
vears.

(5) Where the offender has violated division
fA)(5) or {A)(6) of this section, aggravated traffick-
'ng is a felony of the second degree and the court

impose a sentence of actual incarceration of
three vears and if the offender has previously been
mﬂ"'ﬂed of a felony drug abuse offense, aggravated
icking is 5 felony of the first degree, and the

court shall impose a sentence of actual incarceration
of five years.

(6) Where the offender has violsted division
(AXT) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel.
ony of the first degree and the court shall impose a
sentence of actual incarceration of five years and if
the offender has previously been convicted of a fei-
ony drug abuse offense, the court shall impose s sen-
tence of actual incarceration of at least seven years.

(7) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(8) of this section, aggravated trafficking is a fel-
ony of the first degree and the court shall impose a
sentence of actual incarceration of seven years and if
the offender has previously been convicted of a fel-

ture, preparation, or substance included in schedule
IIL, IV, or V, whoever violates this section is guilty
of trafficking in drugs.

(1) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(1) or (A)(2) of this section, trafficking in drugs is

previously been convicted of 3 drug abuse offense,
trafficking in drugs is a felony of the third 3

(2) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(3) of this section, trafficking in drugsis a felony
of the third degree and the court shall impose a sen.
tence of actual inicarceration of one year and if the
offender has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, trafficking in drugs is 3 felony of
the second degree and the court shall impose a sen.
tence of actual incarceration of two vears,

(3) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(4) of this section. trafficking in drugsis a felony
of the fourth degree and the court shall impose a sen.
tence of actual incarceration of six months and if the
offender has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, trafficking in drugsisa felony of
the third degree and the court shall impose a sen-
tence of actual incarceration of eighteen months.

(4) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(5) of this section, trafficking in drugs is a felony
of the third degree and the court shall impose a sen.
tence of actual incarceration of one year and if the
offender has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, trafficking in drugsisa felony of
the second degree and the court shall impose a sen-
tence of actual incarceration of two years,

(5) Where the offender has violated division
{A)(6) of this section, trafficking in drugsis a felony
of the third degree and the court shall impose a sen-
tence of actual incarceration of eighteen months and
if the offender has previously been convicted of a fel.
ony drug abuse offense, trafficking in drugs is a fel-
ony of the second degree and the court shall impose a
sentence of actual incarceration of three years. -

(6) Where the offender has violated division
(AKT) of this section, trafficking in drugs is a felony
of the second degree and the court shall impose 1
sentence of actual incarceration of two years and if
the offender has previously been convicted of a fel.
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g sbuse offense, trafficking in drugs is a fel-
FB frst degree and the court shall impose a
sentenceof actual incarceration of four vears.

(7) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(8) of this section, trafficking in drugs is a felony
of the first degree and the court shall impose a sen-
tence of actual incarceration of five years and if the
offender has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, the court shall impose a sentence
of actual incarceration of seven vears.

(E) If the drug involved is marihuana. whoever
violates this section is guilty of trafficking in mari-
huana."

(1) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(1). (2), (3). or (4) of this section, trafficking in
marihuana is a felony of the fourth degree and if the
offenider has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, trafficking in marihuana is a fel-
ony of the third degree.

(2) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(S) or (6) of this section, trafficking in marihuana
is a felony of the third degree and if the offender has
previously been convicted of a felony drug abuse
offense, trafficking in marihuana is a felony.of the
second degree.

(3) Where the offender has violated division
(A)(7) of this section. trafficking in marihuana is a
felony of the second degree and the court shall
impose a sentence of actual incarceration of six
months and if the offender has previously been con-
victed of a felony drug abuse offense, the court shall
impose a sentence of actual incarceration of one
year. .

(4) Where the offender has violated division

(A)(8) of this section, trafficking in marihuana is a
felony of the second degree and the court shall
impose a sentence of actual incarceration of one
vear, and if the offender has previously been con-
victed of a felony drug abuse offense, the court shall
impose a sentence of actual incarceration of two
vears.

(5) If the offense involves a gift of twenty grams or
less of marihuana, trafficking in marihuana is a
minor misdemeanor for the first offense and a misde-
meanor of the third degree for any subsequent
offense.

(F) It shall be an affirmative defense, as provided
in section 2901.05 of the Revised Code, to a charge
under this section for possessing a bulk amount of a
controlled substance or for cultivating marihuana
that the substance which gave rise to the charge is in
such amount. in such form, or is prepared. com-
pounded, or mixed with substances which are not
controlled substances in such a manner. or is pos-
sessed or cultivated in any other circumstances
whatsoever as to indicate that the substance was
solely for personal use.

(G) When a person is charged with possessing a
bulk amount or a multiple thereof, the jury. or the

&
court trying the accused shall determine the amoung
of the controlled substance involved at the time of
the offense, and if a guilty verdict is returned sh,j|
return the findings as part of the verdict. In any such
case, it is unnecessary to find and return the exact
amount of the controlled substance and it is suffie.
ient if the finding and return is to the effect that
amount of the controlled substance involved i a
bulk amount or the requisite multiple thereof, of
that the amount of the controlled substance invol‘ved
is less than a bulk amount or the requisite multiple
thereof.

(H) Notwithstanding the fines otherwise requi
to be imposed pursuant to section 2929.1} or
2929.31 of the Revised Code for violations of this sec.
tion and notwithstanding section 2929.14 of the
Revised Code: '

(1) If the offense is trafficking in marihuana and 4
violation of division (A)(1) of this section, the court
shall impose a mandatory fine of one thousand dol.
lars and, if the offender has previously been con.
victed of a felony drug abuse offense, the court sha)
impose a mandatory fine of two thousand dollars.

(2) Uf the offense is trafficking in drugs and a vio-
lation of division (A)(1) of this section, the court
shall impose a mandatory fine of one thousand five
hundred dollars and. if the offender has previously
been convicted of-a felony drug abuse offense, the -
court shall impose a mandatory fine of three thoy.
sand dollars. .

(3) If the offense is trafficking in marihuana and 2
violation «+f division (A)(2). (3), or (4) of this section,
or if the otfense is trafficking in drugs and a violation
of division (A)(2) of this section, the court shall
impose a mandatory fine of two thousand dollars
and. if the uffender has previously been convicted of
a felony drug abuse offense. the court shall impose a
mandatory fine of four thousand dollars.

(4) If the offense is aggravated trafficking and a
violation of division {A)(1) of this section. or if the

offense is trafficking in drugs and a violation of divi-

sion (A)(3) of this section, the court shall impose a
mandatory fine of two thousand five hundred dol-
lars and. if the offender has previously been con-
victed of a felony drug abuse offense, the court shall
impose a mandatory fine of five thousand dollars.

(5) If the offense is trafficking in marihuana and a
violation of division (A)(3) or (6) of this section, or if
the offense is trafficking in drugs and a violation of
division (A){4). (3), or (6) of this section, the court
shall impose a mandatory fine of three thousand dol-
lars and, if the offender has previously been con-
victed of a felony drug abuse offense. the court shall
impose a mandatory fine of six thousand dollars.

(6) [f the offense is trafficking in marihuana and a
violation of division (A}7) of this section, if the
offense is trafficking in drugs and a violation of divi-
sion (A)(7) of this section, or if the offense is aggra-
vated trafficking and a violation of division (A)(2),
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(4), (5), ox section, the court shall imposea ' sion, if the court determines that the offender is an

mandatory of five thousand dollars and, if the indigent person and is unable to pay the fine.

offender has previously been convicted of a felony HISTORY: 136 v H300 (EFF 7.1.78); 141 v s 67, EH 8.29.36.

drug abuse offense, the court shall impose a manda-
tory fine of ten thousand dollars,

(7) If the offense is aggravated trafficking and a
violation of division (AX(3) or (7) of this section, the
court shall impose 3 mandatory fine of seven thou-
sand five hundred dollars and, if the offender has
previously been convicted of a felony drug abuse
offense, the court shall impose a mandatory fine of
fifteen thousand dollars.

(8) If the offense is trafficking in marihuana and a
violation of division (A)(8) of this section or if the
offense is trafficking in drugs and a violation of divi.
sion (A)(8) of this section, the court shall impose a
mandatory fine of ten thousand dollars and, if the
offender has previously been convicted of a felony
drug abuse offense, the court sha]l impose a manda-
tory fine of twenty thousand dollars.

(9) If the offense is aggravated trafficking and a

violation of division (A)(8) of this section, the court
shall impose a mandatory fine of twenty-five thou-
sand dollars and., if the offender has previously been
convicted of a felony drug abuse offense, the court
shall impose a mandatory fine of fifty thousand dol-
lars. :
(I) When the mandatory fine imposed pursuant to
division (H) of this section does not exceed the maxi-
mum fine that could be im pursuant to section
2929.11 or 2929.31 of the Revised Code, the court
may impose an additional fine if the tota] of the
mandatory and additional fines together does not
exceed the maximum fine that could be imposed
pursuant to section 2929.11 or 2929.3] of the
Revised Code. When the mandatory fine exceeds the
maximum fine that could be imposed pursuant to
section 2929.11 or 2929.31 of the Revised Code, the
court shall not impose an additional fine. :

(J) Any mandatory fine imposed pursuant to this
section shall be paid to the law enforcement agencies
in this state that were primarily responsible for or
involved in making the arrest of, and in prosecuting,
the offender. The mandatory fines shall be used to
subsidize each agency's law enforcement efforts that
pertain to drug offenses. Any additional fine
imposed pursuant to division (I) of this section shail
be disbursed as otherwise provided by law.,

(K) If a person is charged with any violation of
this section and posts bail pursuant to sections
2937.22 to 2937 .46 of the Revised Code or Criminal
Rule 46, and if the person forfeits the bail. the for-
feited bail shall be Paid pursuant to division (J) of
this section.

(L) No court shall imponse a mandatory fine pur-
Suant to division (H) of this section upon an offender
who alleges in an affidavit filed with the court prior
to Sefitencing that he is indigent and is unable to pay
a0y mandatory fine imposed pursuant to that divi-

Cross-References to Related Sections
Penalties—

Felonies. for, RC §2929 1),

Misdemeanors, for, RC §2929.21.
Actual incarceration defined, RC § 2925.01(D).
Bulk amount defined, RC § 2925.01(E).
Corrupt activity defined. RC § 2923.31.
Cultivate defined, RC § 2925.01(C).

Definitions applicable to drug abuse offenses, RC §
3719.01.

Drug abuse offense defined, RC § 2925.01(H).
Felony drug abuse offense defined. RC § 2925.01(N).
Knowingly defined, RC § 2901.22(B).
Organized criminal activity, RC § 177.01.
Possess defined, RC §2925.01(L).
Prior conviction—
Pleading, RC § 2941.1].
Proof, RC § 2943.75.
Trafficking in drugs defined as drug abuse offense, RC §
2925.01(H).
Treatment in lieu of conviction, RC § 2951.04.1

Comparative Legislation
Trafficking in drugs:
21 UsC§ 2103
CA—Health& s §11379.5
FL—Stat Ann §§ 859.05. 893.04, 893.06
IL—Ann Stat ch 56! » § 1401
IN—Code § 35-45.].]
KY—Rev Stat Ann; 1§ 218A.140. 218A.990
MI—Comp Laws \nn § 333.7401
NY —Penal Law 1; 220.31-220.43
PA—CSAtit33§ .13
Forms -
Aggravated trafficking: trafficking in drugs/marihuana. 4
OJ1§525.03
Statutory charge. 24 Ohio Crim. Prac. & Pro. 8.126h
Research Aids
Trafficking in drugs:
O-Jurl3d: Crim L. 3§ 2281-2236
Am-Jur2d: Drugs §§2T.13-27.19
ALR

Admissibility of evidence of other sales in prosecution for
illegal sale of narcotics. 93 ALR2d 1097,

Validity and construction of statute creating presumption
or inference of intent to sell from possession of specified
quantity of illegal drugs. 60 ALR3d 1128.

Law Review

Symposium —Criminal law—-Entrapment in Ohio. Com-
ment. 15 AkronLRev 709 ( 1984).

CASE NOTES AND OAG
INDEX

Actual incarceration, |, 4. 14-16
Amendment of indictment, |7, 19, 27




	08/05/88 Consent Agreement
	11/11/87 Citation



